
 

  
 

Adult Social Care 
and Health Select 

Committee 
Agenda 

 
 

 

Date: 
 
Venue: 

Tuesday 20 February 2024 at 4.00 pm 
 
Jim Cooke Conference Suite, Stockton Central Library, Church Road, 
Stockton-on-Tees TS18 1TU 

 
 
Cllr Marc Besford (Chair) 
Cllr Nathan Gale (Vice-Chair) 
 
Cllr Stefan Barnes Cllr Carol Clark 
Cllr John Coulson Cllr Ray Godwin 
Cllr Lynn Hall Cllr Susan Scott 
Cllr Vanessa Sewell  
 
 

AGENDA 
 
1   Evacuation Procedure 

 
(Pages 7 - 8) 

 
2   Apologies for Absence 

 
 
 

3   Declarations of Interest 
 

 
 

4   Minutes 
 

 

 To follow 
 

 
 

5   Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board (TSAB) - Annual 
Report 2022-2023 
 

(Pages 9 - 40) 
 

6   SBC Safeguarding Concerns - Analysis (including 
DoLS activity) 
 

(Pages 41 - 42) 
 

7   Scrutiny Review of Access to GPs and Primary 
Medical Care 
 

 

 To consider patient / public views on this scrutiny topic (to 
follow). 
 

 
 

8   CQC / PAMMS Inspection Results - Quarterly 
Summary (Q3 2023-2024) (to follow) 
 

 
 

9   Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

(Pages 43 - 56) 
 

Page 1



 

  
 

Adult Social Care 
and Health Select 

Committee 
Agenda 

 
 

 

10   Chair's Update and Select Committee Work 
Programme 2023-2024 
 

(Pages 57 - 60) 
 

 

Page 2



  
 

Adult Social Care 
and Health Select 

Committee 
Agenda 

 
 

Members of the Public - Rights to Attend Meeting 
 
With the exception of any item identified above as containing exempt or confidential information under the 
Local Government Act 1972 Section 100A(4), members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting 
and/or have access to the agenda papers. 
 
Persons wishing to obtain any further information on this meeting, including the opportunities available   for 
any member of the public to speak at the meeting; or for details of access to the meeting for 
disabled people, please 
 
Contact:      Scrutiny Support Officer Rachel Harrsion on email rachel.harrison@stockton.gov.uk 

Page 3



  

KEY - Declarable interests are:- 
 
●  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI’s) 
●  Other Registerable Interests (ORI’s) 
●  Non Registerable Interests (NRI’s) 

 
Members – Declaration of Interest Guidance 

 

 

Page 4



  

 

 

Table 1 - Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

Subject Description 

Employment,  
office, trade,  
profession or  
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain 

Sponsorship 

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the council) 
made to the councillor during the previous 12-month period for expenses incurred by 
him/her in carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, or towards his/her election 
expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning 
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts 

Any contract made between the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil partners (or a 
firm in which such person is a partner, or an incorporated body of which such person 
is a director* or  
 
a body that such person has a beneficial interest in the securities of*) and the council 
—  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; 
and  
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land and 
property 

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the council.  
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does 
not give the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the 
councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners (alone or jointly with another) 
a right to occupy or to receive income. 

Licences 
Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer. 

Corporate 
tenancies 

Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s knowledge)—  
(a) the landlord is the council; and  
(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or his/her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners is a 
partner of or a director* of or has a beneficial interest in the securities* of. 

Securities 

Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body where—     
(a) that body (to the councillor’s   knowledge) has a place of business or   land in the 
area of the council; and     
(b) either—     
(i) the total nominal value of the   securities* exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or     
(ii)      if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or civil 
partner or the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil 
partners have a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class. 

* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society. 
 
* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment 
scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any 
description, other than money deposited with a building society.

Page 5



  

 

 

Table 2 – Other Registerable Interest 

You must register as an Other Registrable Interest: 
 
a) any unpaid directorships 
 
b) any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or management and to which 
you are nominated or appointed by your authority  
 
c) any body  
 
(i) exercising functions of a public nature  
 
(ii) directed to charitable purposes or  
 
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political 
party or trade union) of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management 

Page 6



Jim Cooke Conference Suite, Stockton Central Library 
Evacuation Procedure & Housekeeping 
 
If the fire or bomb alarm should sound please exit by the nearest emergency exit. 
The Fire alarm is a continuous ring and the Bomb alarm is the same as the fire 
alarm however it is an intermittent ring.  
 
If the Fire Alarm rings exit through the nearest available emergency exit and form 
up in Municipal Buildings Car Park.   
 
The assembly point for everyone if the Bomb alarm is sounded is the car park at 
the rear of Splash on Church Road.  
 
The emergency exits are located via the doors between the 2 projector screens. 
The key coded emergency exit door will automatically disengage when the alarm 
sounds. 
 
The Toilets are located on the Ground floor corridor of Municipal Buildings next to 
the emergency exit. Both the ladies and gents toilets are located on the right 
hand side. 
 
Microphones 
 
During the meeting, members of the Committee, and officers in attendance, will 
have access to a microphone. Please use the microphones, when directed to 
speak by the Chair, to ensure you are heard by the Committee. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Adult Social Care and Health Select Committee 
 

20 February 2024 
 
 
 

TEESWIDE SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD (TSAB) – ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023 
 
 
Summary 
 
The Committee is requested to consider the Annual Report 2022-2023 of the Teeswide 
Safeguarding Adults Board (TSAB). 
 
 
Detail 
 
1. As part of its approach to monitoring the quality of local health and care services, the 

Committee receives a range of related reports, including an overview of Adult 
Safeguarding activity. 

 
2. Similar arrangements are in place to consider Children’s Safeguarding arrangements at 

the Children and Young People Select Committee. 
 
3. The Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board (TSAB) is the statutory Safeguarding Adults 

Board for the area as required by the Care Act 2014.  The Board’s Annual Report for 
2022-2023 is attached for Members’ consideration, along with the Strategic Business 
Plan for 2022-2025. 

 
4. Members are reminded of the discussion points raised during the Committee’s 

consideration of the last TSAB Annual Report report (2021-2022) in January 2023 – this 
can be found at the following link (see item ASH 45/22): 

 
https://moderngov.stockton.gov.uk/Data/Adult%20Social%20Care%20and%20Health%
20Select%20Committee/202301171600/Agenda/$ACHMIN67.rtf.pdf 

 
 
Contact Officer: Gary Woods 
Post: Senior Scrutiny Officer 
Tel: 01642 526187 
Email: gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

https://moderngov.stockton.gov.uk/Data/Adult%20Social%20Care%20and%20Health%20Select%20Committee/202301171600/Agenda/$ACHMIN67.rtf.pdf
https://moderngov.stockton.gov.uk/Data/Adult%20Social%20Care%20and%20Health%20Select%20Committee/202301171600/Agenda/$ACHMIN67.rtf.pdf
mailto:gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



 

1 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

 
Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board 

Annual Report 
  
 
 
 
 

 
1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 
 

 

Our safeguarding arrangements will effectively prevent 

and respond to adult abuse 
Page 11



 

2 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

Introduction from Darren Best, Independent Chair      
I am pleased to present the Annual Report of the Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board 
(TSAB) for 2022-23.  
 
The TSAB Annual Report has been further developed, with clarity and accessibility at the 
forefront of our minds, I do hope that readers find it so. As I mentioned in my introduction to 
last year’s report the Care Act 2014 requires TSAB, alongside all other Safeguarding Adults 
Boards across the country to produce an Annual Report. The main purposes being to high-
light the work of TSAB over the past 12 months, what has been done to implement our 

strategy, to provide information about Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARs) that have been undertaken and 
subsequently what activity has taken place to implement their findings.  
 
The work of TSAB and its many partner organisations has continued to be hugely complex and presented 
numerous challenges for the many dedicated people who commission, protect and provide services to 
some of the most vulnerable people in our communities.  
 
During 2022-23 the Board has continued to work closely with both statutory and voluntary sector partners 
to gain the reassurance that safeguarding issues are addressed effectively and appropriately. Our      
strategy has been developed and underpinned by the six safeguarding principles of empowerment,      
prevention, protection, partnership, proportionality and accountability.  
 
As Independent Chair, it continues to be my privilege to learn and hear about the experiences and      
challenges faced by those who provide safeguarding services in Teesside, as I did last year I would like to 
place on record, my gratitude to every one of them. Equally I am always aware that the numbers and    
statistics contained within this report each have the real-life experiences of people sat behind them, it is 
on that basis that individually and collectively we must strive to develop and improve the ways in which we 
work and offer services. 
 
Finally, I would like to offer a personal thanks to all members of the Board, in particular the Chairs of the 
Sub-Groups and to the people who work in our Business Unit, for their continued professionalism,  
commitment, hard work and support. 

Contents                              Page 

1. Board Structure                                          3 

2. Board Achievements         4 

3. Safeguarding Data 2022/23                       5             

4. Communication & Engagement                 7 

5. Training         8 

6. 2022/23 Priorities  

 Joint Working                                    9   

 People                                             10          

 Communication                               11          

 Services                                          12 

7.      Safeguarding Adult Reviews                    13 

8.      Partner Activity                                         15 

9.      Our Priorities 2023/24                              18 

10. Appendix                                                  19 

11. Glossary of terms     20 

What does the Board do? 

The Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board (TSAB) is 

a statutory body responsible for protecting adults’ 

rights to live independent lives, free from abuse and 

neglect. 

The Board works collaboratively with partners to set 

the strategic direction for adult safeguarding in Tees 

and seeks assurance from partners that they have 

appropriate and robust safeguarding arrangements 

in place. 

Board Member Organisations 

6 Statutory Partners: 

• Cleveland Police 

• Hartlepool Borough Council 

• Middlesbrough Council 

• NHS North East and North Cumbria Integrated 

Care Board 

• Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council 

• Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council 

Page 12



 

3 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

Board Structure 
The Board has continued to engage with key      

strategic partnerships across Tees including the  

Local Safeguarding Children Partnerships, Health & 

Wellbeing Boards, Community Safety Partnerships, 

Tees Strategic Exploitation Group (formerly known 

as Vulnerable Exploited Missing and Trafficked), 

Serious and Organised Crime Group and the  

Cleveland Anti-Slavery Network as well as regional 

and national Safeguarding Adults Boards.  

Board Member Organisations 

23 Non-Statutory Partners:  

• A Way Out  

• Beyond Housing 

• Care Quality Commission  

• Catalyst Stockton-on-Tees (Voluntary        
Development Agency) 

• Cleveland Fire Brigade 

• Probation Service  

• Department for Work and Pensions 

• Hartlepool & Stockton-on-Tees Safeguarding 
Children Partnership 

• Hartlepower  

• Healthwatch Hartlepool 

• Healthwatch South Tees 

• Healthwatch Stockton-on-Tees 

• HMP Holme House Prison 

• Middlesbrough Voluntary Development   
Agency 

• North East Ambulance Service 

• North Tees & Hartlepool NHS Foundation 
Trust 

• Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
for Cleveland 

• Redcar & Cleveland Voluntary Development 
Agency 

• South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• South Tees Safeguarding Children           
Partnership 

• Tees Esk & Wear Valleys NHS Foundation 
Trust 

• Teesside University 

• Thirteen Housing 

Sub-Groups 
The Board has a number of Sub-Groups, who lead 

on key pieces of work in order to achieve the aims 

and objectives set out in the Board’s Strategic 

Business Plan 2022/23. The purpose of the Sub-

Groups are summarised below. 

Safeguarding Adult Review (SAR) 

Leads on the development and implementation of 

the Teeswide SAR Policy and Procedures to     

ensure that learning from any reviews undertaken 

locally and nationally is disseminated                 

appropriately. The Sub-Group also considers    

notifications for SARs and makes                      

recommendations to the Independent Chair. 

Communication & Engagement (CE) 

Leads the development, implementation and   

evaluation of a multi-agency strategy aimed at  

increasing awareness of safeguarding adults and 

promoting the involvement of adults at risk, carers 

and advocates in the Teeswide safeguarding 

adults processes. 

Learning Training & Development (LTD) 

Leads the development, implementation and   

evaluation of a multi-agency learning, training and 

development strategy. 

Operational Leads (OL)  

To provide a forum to enable safeguarding adults 

operational leads from TSAB partner agencies to 

share good practice, problem-solve and access 

peer support. The Sub-Group also provides      

qualitative data to inform the development of    

person-centred policies, procedures and         

strategies. 

Performance, Audit & Quality (PAQ) 

Leads the development and implementation of a 

performance framework and provides an audit and 

quality assurance function on behalf of the TSAB. 

Task & Finish Groups 
During 2022/23 there were a number of Task & Finish 
Groups to look at specific work streams:  
 
 Creating Safer Cultures 

 National Safeguarding Adults Week 

 Organisational Abuse  

 Welfare Visit Requests for Vulnerable People  

 Team Around The Individual (TATI) Review 

 Joint Learning Event  

 SAR Procedures Review  

 Power BI 

 Responding to and Addressing Serious          
Concerns (RASC) Providers Action Plan        
template  Page 13



 

4 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

July—September 2022 

• Trauma Informed Practice Me-Learning 

course launched 

• SAR - Martin Learning Briefing published 

• Safeguarding Champions presentation 

delivered to the Care Provider Peer  

Support Group  

• A number of Presentations were delivered 

to Board including: People First, Cleveland 

Police, South Tees Hospitals NHS     

Foundation Trust  

• ARCH Teesside attended the Operational 

Leads Sub-Group to discuss the services 

they offer in relation to sexual violence 

support 

April—June 2022 

• Safeguarding and Falls Guidance was  

developed and published 

• A number of key campaigns took place  
including: 

 Stalking Awareness Week—
awareness of 2 new specialist Stalking  
Advocates, anonymised Stalking case 
study included within the TSAB  
bulletins, sharing of the spotting the 
signs tool in 11 languages (Suzy 
Lamplugh Trust resource) 

 Deaf Awareness Week— 
Deaf awareness poster produced,  
article included within the TSAB 
Newsletter, local sensory support 
groups information included on TSAB 
website 

• A Self-Neglect launch poster was included 
in Stockton News resident magazine and 
sent to 90,000 homes. 

• A Joint Learning from Reviews event was 

hosted together with colleagues from the   

Safeguarding Children Partnerships and       

Community Safety Partnerships  

• A number of TSAB training courses took 

place including; Safeguarding Vulnerable 

Dependent Drinkers, Self-Neglect and Legal 

Literacy 

• “Molly” Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR) 

published 

October—December 2022 

• Independent Voices Advocacy Group    

session on Self-Neglect took place,    

members created their own posters and 

completed surveys. A new Self-Neglect 

easy read poster was developed. 

• A number of key campaigns took place: 

 National Safeguarding Adults 

Week coincided with Carers’ 

Rights Day and 16 Days of   

Activism for the Elimination of 

Violence Against Women and 

Girls. A range of communication 

and engagement activity took 

place across the week, raising 

the profile of safeguarding 

adults.  

• The first Adult Sexual and Criminal  

Exploitation Webinar was held 

 

January—March 2023 

• A number of awareness campaigns took 

place: 

 Sexual Violence Awareness Week  

 Spotlight on Organisational Abuse 

 Spotlight on Trauma Campaign   

• Trauma-Informed Practice Briefing  

Session delivered by the South Tees 

Trauma Lead. 

• Hosted a Legal Updates for Board  

Members Training session 

• Adult K Learning and Reflection         

workshop was held   

Some of our key     

achievements over the past 

year... 

Page 14



 

5 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

Safeguarding Data 2022-23 

Concerns and Section 42 Enquiries* 
* Data on this page relates to Section 42 Enquiries commenced 

Location of Abuse: Section 42 Enquiries 

Types of Adult Abuse: Section 42 Enquiries 

S42 Enquiries - The Care Act 2014 (Section 42) requires that 

each Local Authority must make enquiries, or cause others to do so, 

if it believes an adult is experiencing, or is at risk of, abuse and/or 

neglect.  

Safeguarding Concern - a report made 

to the lead agency for the safeguarding 

process to raise concerns of adult abuse/ 

neglect.  

Page 15



 

6 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

 Performance Indicators (PI) 

Outcomes of Concluded Section 42 Enquiries 

Page 16



 

7 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

Communication and Engagement 

Read more detail in the Board’s Annual Communication & Engagement Report 2022/23 

149,436 website views 

 

                   

  

 

 

 

  

 

976,000 Impacts -  bus 

stop advert 

4 Radio interviews                 

2 Radio adverts 

Awareness Raising Campaigns  

Throughout the year, The Board engaged collaboratively with partners in a wide 

range of awareness raising activities, utilising multiple communication and      

engagement methods with an aim of engaging professionals, members of the 

general public, harder to reach groups and digitally excluded individuals.  

National Safeguarding Adults Week was a key event in 2022, with a             

comprehensive communication and engagement plan of activity throughout the 

week to raise awareness of important safeguarding messages. This included a 

social media campaign, displaying of TSAB material across Tees, a Bus Stop 

poster campaign, training courses and events for professionals and the           

development of resources with a local Independent Advocacy Service. TSAB 

also launched the Sexual Exploitation leaflet in Vietnamese and Community 

Voices FM (CVFM) produced a “how to report abuse and neglect” advert in   

English and Urdu.  

Other awareness raising events included Stalking Awareness Week and three 

“Spotlight On” campaigns comprising of Creating Safer Cultures, Organisational 

Abuse and Trauma-Informed Practice.  

910 Followers* 

28,150 Reached 

* 16% increase on 2021/22 

844 Followers* 

41,900 Impressions 

*6% increase on 2021/22 

66 YouTube Subscribers   

291,000 Local Magazine                                

Impressions  

(digital advertising)  

8,607 TSAB Newsletter reads 

962 Safeguarding Champions 

Bulletin reads 

88 Safe Place Scheme Locations  
The steering group met twice and work was          

completed to ensure the list of locations and map was 

up to date. An ‘information pack’ was developed to 

signpost venue staff to safeguarding awareness  

training and other relevant schemes 

such as Ask ANI.  

 

Click here for more information.  

Safeguarding Champions  
Focused work on recruitment to the               

Safeguarding Champions initiative resulted in a 

79% increase in champions. Safeguarding 

Champions receive quarterly e-bulletins and 

they can use their unique position to            

communicate important messages to their     

organisations and local communities. 

Click here for more information.  Page 17

https://www.tsab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/Annual-Communication-and-Engagement-Report-22-23.pdf
https://www.tsab.org.uk/campaigns-and-initiatives/find-support-in-your-area/safe-place-scheme/
https://www.tsab.org.uk/campaigns-and-initiatives/safeguardingchampionsarea/


 

8 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

Training  
The Board provides free multi-agency training, designed to supplement single agency training provision. 

The Board continued to deliver its existing training programme as well as commissioning additional  

courses. 

 220 workbooks 

completed 

580 delegates attended virtual training webinars 

118 delegates attended face to face training  

It broadened my knowledge of sexual exploitation and 

the signs to look out for. It also heightened my          

understanding of how victims maybe feeling and the 

depth of trauma that this has inflicted to them.  

Learner Feedback - Adult Criminal and Sexual Exploitation  

This course has introduced me to the many different 

ways that are now recognised as 'modern day slavery'. 

Understanding the types of exploitation, the indicators 

and the key drivers will also help me to recognise any 

'tell tale signs' with my service users. Thus enabling 

me to provide the correct safeguarding and support 

necessary for that individual.  

Learner Feedback - Modern Day Slavery 

TSAB courses and webinars 

introduced in 2022/23: 

 Trauma Informed Practice 

Me-Learning   

 Adult Criminal and Sexual 

Exploitation Webinar 

 Modern Day Slavery    

Webinar 

Me-Learning      

The Board commissions the e-Learning platform (Me-Learning) with the local Safeguarding Children   

Partnerships. There are often crossovers between children and adult safeguarding work and therefore it 

is recognised that people who work with children and/or adults greatly benefit from having access to a 

wide range of safeguarding courses available in one place. The figures below are based on all learners 

across children and adults.   

 5,804 learners*   

*3,916 new learners 

From 1,421 different organisations 

Registered for 18,208* e-learning courses  

*91% completion rate 

1,222 completed     

Safeguarding Adults   

Level 1  

583 completed        

Trauma Informed     

Practice  

“ 

“ 

Since the training I have changed my view from        

dependent drinkers being a "lifestyle choice" and have 

begun working more creatively and consistently to  

support one of my service users on a frequent basis. 

Learner Feedback -Safeguarding Vulnerable Dependant    

Drinkers   
“ 

” 
” 
” 

Adult Criminal &  Sexual 
Exploitation Webinar  

2 sessions were held  

39 delegates attended  

From 17 different         
organisations 

Page 18



 

9 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

 Priority 1: Joint Working  

Aim: We will develop a whole system approach to safeguarding adults which is              

responsive to individual’s needs, views and wishes  

What we did: 

 A Team Around The Individual (TATI) Review Task & Finish Group was established to review          

operational practice and procedures across Tees to develop a Teeswide Terms of Reference and 

Guidance for the management of high-risk complex cases. This work is ongoing and near completion 

and will be further reported on in 2023/24. 

 TSAB policies and procedures were updated to reflect the enactment of the Domestic Abuse Act 2021. 

The Domestic Abuse Training Workbook was also reviewed.  

 Adult Criminal and Sexual Exploitation Training was commissioned and piloted throughout 2022/23, 

this includes reference and links to the Molly SAR. The training has received positive feedback and 

one delegate advised that following the course they discussed exploitation with a service user which      

resulted in a disclosure of abuse and cuckooing. The delegate then supported the service user to    

access safe accommodation. 

 Following the Molly Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR) publication in June 2022 where Trauma was 

identified as a main theme, a recommendation to continue the work to embed Trauma Informed Care 

in practice was actioned. In July 2022 the Trauma Informed Practice Me-Learning course was 

launched online. Work in this area will continue into 2023/24.  

 A ‘Spotlight on’ Trauma Informed Practice campaign was hosted during March 2023 and a Trauma      

Informed Practice Briefing Session was delivered to 26 delegates by the South Tees Trauma Lead 

from Middlesbrough Council. A Trauma Informed Practice fact sheet aimed at professionals and the 

general public was published and shared with partner organisations and across social media          

platforms. 

 TSAB met with the          

managers of the          

Children’s Safeguarding 

Partnerships to review the 

Think Family Guidance.  

 

What we said we would do: 

1. Ensure Board partners work together in an effective manner to protect adults from all forms of abuse 

and neglect.  

2. Consider and act upon the impact of new legislation and statutory guidance on safeguarding      

practice, for example, Liberty Protection Safeguards, Domestic Abuse Act 2021.  

3. Engage and Collaborate with the Local Safeguarding Children Partnerships, Community Safety   

Partnerships, Domestic Abuse Steering Groups, Health and Well-being Boards, Tees Strategic    

Exploitation Group (TSEG) and partners to deliver joint priorities and objectives.  

4. Engage and collaborate with the multi-partnership and multi-agency development work regarding 

Missing Adults, Transitions, Contextual Safeguarding and Adult Sexual Exploitation.  

5. Further embed trauma informed practice, strengths based and person-centered approaches to all 

safeguarding adults’ work.  

The Integrated Care Board (ICB) has continued to support the aims and 

objectives set out within the Board’s strategic plan 2022/2023. We ensure 

representation at the various sub-groups and attendance at the 

Board. We have and continue to support some of the review work, for  

example the review of The Team Around the Individual (TATI) processes. 

We continue to share relevant information with primary care during our 

quarterly engagement sessions which seeks to raise the profile of the 

work of the Board and all matters of safeguarding within our area.   

” 

“ 
Page 19

https://www.tsab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Think-Family-Guidance-V2.2-April-2022.pdf


 

10 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

 Priority 2: People   

Aim: We will ensure the workforce is well trained, supported and equipped to safeguard 

the most vulnerable people within our communities  

What we said we would do: 

1. Seek assurance from partners that staff understand the legislative framework and the principles of 

trauma informed practice to ensure the best outcomes for adults at risk.  

2. Seek assurance from partners that staff are provided with single agency Safeguarding Adults     

training in accordance with the TSAB Training Strategy.  

3. Seek assurance from partners that staff are provided with support and training, particularly in       

relation to the management of high risk/complex cases and with consideration of vicarious trauma.  

4. Learn from the findings of local, regional, and national Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SAR), Learning 

Lessons Reviews (LLR), applicable Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHR), and Safeguarding Children 

Practice Reviews (SCPR) and implement action plans.  

5. Provide opportunities for partners to share learning and best practice in all aspects of safeguarding 

adults work which will promote staff and public confidence.  

What we did: 
 The Molly Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR) was published. A learning briefing and a recorded 

PowerPoint presentation was developed to be used as a training tool to share learning from the 

SAR. In conjunction with Newcastle Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB), the Molly SAR was         

highlighted via the SAR Escalation Protocol as some of the issues highlighted in the case had      

national implications. This included the Department of Health and Social Care to consider taking a 

lead role in developing a national definition of Adult Sexual Exploitation and practice guidance and 

for the Criminal Justice issues to be taken to the Ministry of Justice. Colleagues from Newcastle 

SAB were invited to TSAB’s SAR Sub-Group to talk about Operation Sanctuary and findings         

relevant to the Molly SAR and progress/gaps of national recommendations.  

 A meeting was convened to gain further insight into how the SAR and Learning Disabilities Mortality 

Review (LeDeR) process interlink, ensuring learning is captured and not duplicated. Work in this   

area will continue in 2023/24.  

 The SAR Sub-Group explored and discussed learning from regional and national SARs. One of the 

themes discussed included Newcastle’s Adult N SAR and how we can better engage with          

pharmacies across Tees. Pharmacies will now be considered as key partners where relevant in 

safeguarding meetings and SARs.  

 The Quality Assurance Framework (QAF) Self-Audit Tool was updated and completed by Statutory    

Partners during 2022/23. QAF submissions from Statutory Partners has provided the required      

assurance that learning from reviews is being cascaded within the organisations.   

 Annual surveys have highlighted that Organisational Abuse continues to be the least well              

understood form of abuse amongst both professionals and the general public. Considering recent 

high profile regional and national SARs such as Whorlton Hall (Durham) and Joanna, Jon and Ben 

(Norfolk), the SAR Sub-Group felt it was beneficial to raise awareness of ‘Creating Safer Cultures’ 

and hosted a week long campaign in June 2022. Work is ongoing at a Regional Task & Finish 

Group on decision making tools for Organisational Abuse. This will be reported on in 2023/24.  

 During National Safeguarding Adults Week  

Cleveland Police held an awareness session on 

Adult Exploitation and County Lines. 53 people 

from 18 organisations attended and positive  

feedback was received.  

Tees, Esk and Wear Valley NHS Foundation 
Trust is committed to learning from Safeguarding 
Adult Reviews, actively participating, acting on 
recommendations and disseminating the learning 
across the organisation. 

” 
“ 

Page 20

https://www.local.gov.uk/national-escalation-protocol-issues-safeguarding-adults-reviews-safeguarding-adult-boards
https://www.tsab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/20221116-Learning-from-Regional-and-National-Cases.pdf


 

11 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

Priority 3: Communication  

Aim: We will provide accessible and clear information, advice and support that helps   

people to understand what abuse is, how to prevent abuse from happening, how to seek 

help and how to engage with the work of the Board  

What we said we would do: 

1. Establish mechanisms that enable adults, their families, and their carers to better inform the future 

direction and priorities of Adult Safeguarding across Teesside. 

2. Ensure adults who use safeguarding services are asked what they want as outcomes from the  

safeguarding process and that their views actively inform what happens.   

3. Communicate with and seek feedback from adults, families, and carers to ensure safeguarding    

responses are the least intrusive possible and proportionate to the risk(s) presented. 

4. Further develop the Safeguarding Champions initiative to improve engagement with local           

communities, harder to reach groups, the seldom heard and to create stronger links with the       

community and voluntary sector. 

5. Improve information sharing across and between agencies to ensure the best outcomes for adults 

using safeguarding services. 

What we did: 

 The Board’s Annual Survey 2022-23 was completed by 414 people, with 236 responses from     

professionals and 178 from members of the public. The highest number of Easy Read surveys were 

completed during 22/23, with an 170% increase compared to 2021-22. The Easy Read survey was 

developed in conjunction with advocacy service, Independent Voices with the aim of making the 

Annual Survey more inclusive and accessible. The feedback provided from the surveys will inform 

the development of the TSAB Business Plan for 2023-24.  

 The Performance, Audit and Quality (PAQ) Sub-Group have continued to monitor four Performance 

Indicators this last year, with all areas being achieved at the end of the reporting year.  

 A number of key ‘Spotlight On’ awareness raising campaigns took place across the year including; 

Creating Safer Cultures, Organisational Abuse, Trauma Informed Practice. 

 As part of the Safeguarding Champions recruitment drive, the champions’ presentation was        

delivered to a number of groups to promote the initiative, including Stockton Care Provider Peer 

Support Group and the Catalyst Adult Forum. 

 Voluntary Sector Services Directories were linked to Find Support in Your Area webpage. The   

Business Unit are also now also signed up to receive their e-bulletins. 

 A “Joint Learning from Reviews” event hosted in collaboration with the Safeguarding Children      

Partnerships and Community Safety partnership across Tees focused on learning from local      

Safeguarding Adult Reviews, Domestic Homicide Reviews and Safeguarding Children’s Practice 

Reviews and included an expert by experience presentation. 156 people attended from 44          

organisations.  

 TSAB attended a Self-Neglect session with Advocacy 

Service Independent Voices. The session explored 

what self-neglect is, how to spot the signs and how to 

ask for help. A self-neglect animation was shown and 

participants created their own self-neglect poster and 

completed a survey. This informed the creation of a 

self-neglect easy read poster which received positive 

comments from the group.  

Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS     
Foundation Trust took the opportunity to 
create awareness of safeguarding adults to 
staff, services users and families during         
Safeguarding Adults week in November 
2022 by promoting material at stalls within 
the public areas of our main hospitals and 
providing advice and understanding of   
safeguarding to those around. 

” 

“ 
Page 21



 

12 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

Priority 4: Services  

Aim: Services are commissioned and provided by our partners to meet the individual 

needs of adults who are most at risk of abuse or neglect 

What we said we do: 

1. Ensure that adults at risk of neglect and/or abuse can access support services and schemes such 

as the Safe Place Scheme and Ask ANI. 

2. Review the services and support available across Tees which aim to reduce the impact of loneliness 

and isolation on vulnerable people. 

3. Seek regular assurance from our partners on the safe commissioning and delivery of services. 

4. Improve our performance monitoring processes and systems to obtain accurate, current and        

validated information. 

What we did:  

 TSAB oversee the governance arrangements for the Teeswide Safe Place Scheme. Work has   

continued to audit venues and individuals accessing services are routinely involved in the audits. 

There was a notable reduction this year in the number of venues which are part of the scheme due 

to the closures of businesses, which could be a link to the ongoing cost-of-living crisis.   

 During Deaf Awareness week in May 2022, TSAB worked with partner agencies to raise awareness 

and to support with reducing loneliness, isolation and engaging with harder to reach groups. A deaf 

awareness poster was produced and circulated. Ongoing discussions were conducted around how 

deaf people can self-report safeguarding concerns. Work remains ongoing in this area and progress 

will be reported on in 2023-24.   

 TSAB held a “Creating Safer Cultures Week” which included an Elder Abuse session for            

Safeguarding Champions. Safeguarding Explained videos were shared online for trauma informed 

practice and loneliness and isolation.  

 A full review of the “Find Support in Your Area” page was carried out, ensuring all information      

regarding help and support was up-to-date.  

 Multi-agency audits took place across the year, themes included; Team Around The Individual    

Self-Neglect, Transitions, Psychological Abuse, Sexual Exploitation and Organisational Abuse. 

 A Task and Finish group was set up to create an Action Plan Template for Responding to and     

Addressing Serious Concerns (RASC), to ensue that providers who are subject to RASC can     

consistently provide feedback to the Local Authority.  

 3 Care Quality Commission Findings Reports for Tees, Esk and Wear Valley, South Tees (James 

Cook Hospital) and North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust were presented to Board 

members and assurance was provided. 

 A Task & Finish Group was           

established to develop and           

implement a Power BI dashboard 

which produces high quality          

performance reports. This work    

continues and will be reported on in 

2023/24. 

Middlesbrough Council launched a review of the Safe 
Places Scheme. We are progressing work to develop our 
offer and to ensure that those signed up to the Safe Places 
Scheme feel confident in supporting the residents of        
Middlesbrough. Engagement with users of our service has 
also given us valuable insight into what individuals need 
from the scheme in order to feel safe and protected.   

” 

“ 
Page 22

https://www.tsab.org.uk/campaigns-and-initiatives/find-support-in-your-area/


 

13 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARs) 

A SAR is undertaken when agencies who worked with an adult who has been subject to abuse or        

neglect, come together to find out if they could have done things differently and prevented serious harm 

or death from happening. A SAR does not blame an individual or organisation for their actions, its       

purpose is to learn from what happened and to consider what can be changed so that harm is less likely 

to happen in the same way to other people in the future. 

The Care Act 2014 says that Safeguarding Adult Boards must arrange a SAR when an adult dies or is 
seriously harmed as a result of suspected or known abuse or neglect and there is reasonable cause for 
concern about how, or if partners worked together to safeguard the adult. 

8 
SAR Notifications  

Considered 

6 

Referrals met criteria for a SAR 
 

(our highest number since TSAB   
began) 

2 

Referrals did not meet  
criteria for SAR 

SAR Sub-Group Activity 
The role of the Sub-Group is to consider new SAR notifications, oversee 

any ongoing SARs or other reviews, ensure any learning from reviews 

(locally, regionally or nationally) is considered by TSAB partners and    

taken forward in their own organisations, and to oversee the  

implementation of action plans arising from review activity across Tees.  

The SAR Sub-Group met 12 times in 2022-23. The group met on a bi-monthly basis, with bi-monthly   

Notification meetings in between – this ensured that the 28-day timescale for consideration of new SAR 

Notifications could be met.  

Membership of the Sub-Group comprises of senior managers from our key partner organisations. 

2022/23 Published Reports 

• 1 SAR (Molly)  

• 2 Learning Briefings  

North East SAR     

Champions Network 

• ‘What to do about Self-

Neglect’ animation video   

developed and published as 

part of NSAW. 

• Self-Neglect conference held 

during NSAW. Included    

topics such as ‘Challenges 

and Evidence from         

Safeguarding Adult Reviews’.  

• 7 Learning Briefings on     

Self-Neglect developed and 

published in May 2022. 

SAR Sub-Group Achievements  

• As of 31 March 2023, the SAR Sub-Group were monitoring 11 

open cases 

• 7 cases were completed/ closed during 2022/2023 

• Learning was considered from 3 regional and national cases    

including Katharine (Dorset), Adult N (Newcastle) and Eileen 

Dean (Lewisham).  

• Learning reports regarding Care Providers who have been     

subject to the Responding to and Addressing Serious Concerns 

(RASC) Protocol were considered and 3 reports were shared 

during 2022/23. Sub-Group members were asked to consult with 

care providers and provide feedback on the RASC Protocol and 

an action plan template for care providers was developed and  

 published in August 2022.  

• SAR Policy & Procedures Review Task & Finish Group was    

convened. The revised policy was presented to the board and 

published.  

“Mrs I” Learning Briefing - Mrs I was an 84 year old lady who lived in a care home receiving 24 

hours nursing care. Mrs I was discharged from the hospital Emergency Department (ED) back to the care 

home. Mrs I’s condition significantly deteriorated and Mrs I returned to the ED later that day. There was a 

delay in obtaining an in-patient bed and Mrs I died whilst in the ED causing significant distress to family 

members.  

This case raised key themes around two-way communication between hospitals and care homes, medical 

management, professional curiosity and personalised care.  
Page 23

https://www.tsab.org.uk/professionals/safeguarding-adult-review-sar-reports/
https://www.tsab.org.uk/professionals/safeguarding-adult-review-sar-reports/
https://www.tsab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/Molly-Overview-Report-V5-Accessible-Version.pdf
https://www.tsab.org.uk/professionals/safeguarding-adult-review-sar-reports/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=WkjxMdCs9mA
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=WkjxMdCs9mA
https://www.youtube.com/@northeastadass
https://www.tsab.org.uk/key-information/policies-strategies/self-neglect-briefings-for-practitioners/
https://www.tsab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/20221116-Learning-from-Regional-and-National-Cases.pdf
https://www.tsab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/20230118-Learning-from-Regional-National-SARs-Lewisham.pdf
https://www.tsab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/20230118-Learning-from-Regional-National-SARs-Lewisham.pdf
https://www.tsab.org.uk/professionals/safeguarding-adult-review-sar-policy-procedures/
https://www.tsab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Learning-Briefing-Adult-I-Reviewed.pdf


 

14 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

“Molly” SAR 
Molly was found deceased at the property of a person she did not know well when she was 25 years old. 

Molly was well known to services; she was open to safeguarding for two years and was involved in the 

Team Around the Individual process for over one year. The key concerns regarding Molly related to   

sexual exploitation from multiple perpetrators, sexual violence, historical abuse, self-harm, domestic 

abuse, self-neglect, homelessness, and drug use.  

The SAR highlighted good practice and multi-agency working.  

Learning was identified in the following areas and the following actions have been completed:  

 

The Safeguarding System   

• A full review of the Team Around The Individual (TATI) is underway to develop a consistent       

Teeswide approach for managing complex and high-risk cases. Work in this area remains ongoing.  

 

Adult Sexual Exploitation 

• Adult Sexual Exploitation (ASE) and trauma was highlighted as a priority for The Board.              

Discussions were ongoing throughout 2022/23 on how this could be addressed on a local level as 

well as raising the profile of issues nationally.  

• The CEO of A Way Out Charity who support victims of ASE became a member of the Board in  

September 2022 to provide a link to and advice on the work that is ongoing regarding exploitation 

of adults.  

• TSAB’s first Adult Sexual Exploitation and Adult Criminal Exploitation training course was held.  

• Work is ongoing regarding the development of a wider Exploitation Strategy and Adult Sexual      

Exploitation Guidance for professionals and will be reported on in 2023/24.  

 

Trauma Informed Care/ Approaches  

• A Spotlight on Trauma Campaign was held in March 2023;  resources were created and shared 

online and with local Safeguarding Children’s Partnerships.  

• A Trauma Informed Practice animation was launched June 2022. 

• TSAB’s Trauma Informed E-Learning was promoted.  

 

The Legal System 

• Learning Briefing on Executive Capacity was published and circulated throughout TSAB networks.  

 

Complex Cases Support and Supervision  

• Considerations will be given within the TATI review to include a checklist and guidance for        

managers around supervision for professionals working with complex cases. Work in this area    

remains ongoing and will reported on in 2023/24.  

 

Some of the issues identified in this case had national implications and TSAB together with Newcastle 

SAB highlighted concerns via the SAR Escalation Protocol. 

Click here to access the full report and 

associated documents.  

“Martin” Learning Briefing -  Martin was a 64 year old man who had a diagnosis of autism and 

a learning disability. He was diagnosed with a brain tumour in 2020. Martin lived in supported living until 

he was placed in a residential care setting in October 2020 following a hospital admission. Martin was  

admitted to hospital in January 2021 and passed away in February 2021 due to aspiration pneumonia. 

Martin’s siblings raised concerns regarding the care provided to him prior to his death resulting in a   

Safeguarding Enquiry.    

The Lesson Learned Review (LLR) raised key themes on communication with the adult, family and      

between health and social care, professional curiosity, discharge arrangements, mental capacity          

assessments and the impact of Covid-19.  

Page 24

https://www.tsab.org.uk/professionals/safeguarding-adult-review-sar-reports/
https://www.tsab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/Learning-Briefing-Martin-Final.pdf


 

15 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

Partner Activity 2022/23  

Each year, Board partners reflect on their organisations’ involvement, contribution and support in helping 
to achieve the Board’s strategic aims and objectives. Their summaries are included below: 

Middlesbrough Council (MBC) Middlesbrough Council’s complex needs accommodation pilot moved 
into its second year of delivery in 2022/23. This scheme has allowed us to take a person centred      
approach to safety planning for females with some of the most complex needs in Middlesbrough. One 
of our female residents was able to successfully move on from the flats and is now sustaining her own 
tenancy. We launched a bespoke trauma informed training programme which delivered intensive    
training over a period of 6 months and incorporated trauma informed supervision into the training   
module. This has supported us to embed trauma informed principles into our adult safeguarding work.  

As part of safeguarding week in 2022 we developed an article which was published in our Love       
Middlesbrough Magazine and also worked with our Neighbourhood Safety Officers to promote       
safeguarding in their day to day work. We have focussed on highlighting risks in relation to               
organisational abuse with the aim to promote joint working with our providers with the aim of protecting 
those in receipt of services. Two presentations have been delivered to providers 
to highlight risks and best practice in relation to organisational abuse, the first in 
safeguarding week 2022 and the second to our provider forum.  

Hartlepool Borough Council (HBC) has continued to contribute to delivering the strategic aims of 
TSAB through active participation across the TSAB agenda, chairing two of the TSAB Sub Groups and      
routinely disseminating learning to providers and the adult social care workforce. Our QAF submission 
during 2022/23 was commended as transparent, detailed and well-evidenced and provided us with 
clear priorities to take forward. We also shared the findings from an independent peer review of our 
safeguarding arrangements, undertaken by Partners in Care & Health in March 2023. The review   
highlighted evidence of strong collaborative working with statutory and community partners and a view 
that HBC ‘punched above its weight’ in terms of partnership engagement and innovation. The Council 
undertook a range of activities during National Safeguarding Adults Week (NSAW) in 2022 including 
safeguarding awareness sessions with members of the deaf community, supporting our Trading  
Standards team to raise awareness of scams and doorstep crime, awareness raising on Radio       
Hartlepool and across our Community Hubs. Information was also shared via the local Hartbeat      
publication, which was delivered to 42,000 households across Hartlepool. We also held a Provider   
Forum during NSAW sharing best practice and learning from SARs, raising awareness 
of organisational abuse and promoting the TSAB Safeguarding Champion role. 

Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council (SBC) has engaged with numerous partners, the Police,     
Housing, Probation, NHS providers, Public Health, etc. to ensure the needs of an individual are          
addressed holistically. We continue to discuss cases of the most vulnerable residents at the Team 
Around the Individual (TATI) meetings, where agencies bring skills and knowledge about the individual 
and share ideas and views how best support an adult, their family and wider community from abuse 
and/or neglect as far as possible. The Adult Safeguarding Team took an active role in contributing    
towards Stockton-on-Tees Domestic Abuse Strategy 2022-2028, where agencies from across the    
sector came together to set key priorities when it comes to tackling domestic abuse. SBC contributes to 
the numerous forums/ meetings, such as: MAPPA, MARAC, MATAC, Channel Panel (PREVENT), and 
Cleveland Anti-slavery Network. Staff are aware of our local services, which can and should be         
accessed when an adult is at risk; such as Safe Place Scheme, or Ask for ANI 
(Action Needed Immediately). 

Redcar and Cleveland Borough Council (RCBC) In 2022/23 Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council 
has continued to work collaboratively with our Board partners to deliver positive change for the adults 
and carers we support. We have actively contributed to the Team Around the Individual task and finish 
group to review how we support adults with complex needs and risk-taking behaviours, to strive for a 
consistent approach to reduce risks and improve their quality of life. We have completed regular 
themed Safeguarding Audits and fed the learning into the Safeguarding Adults Review Sub-Group 

In January 2023 we completed the Board’s Safeguarding Quality Assurance Framework Self-Audit. We 
received positive feedback from the evaluation panel, which agreed with our assessment 
and highlighted two areas of best practice, that is, sharing learning from SARs and Other 
Reviews, and effective safeguarding information sharing with care providers. The panel 
made helpful recommendations about how we can better evidence best practice in       
safeguarding training, prevention and practice assurance.   

Page 25



 

16 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

Partner Activity 2022/23 Continued... 
Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust (TEWV) are an active partner of the Teeswide  

Safeguarding Adults Board contributing to developing new initiatives, policy and guidance in line with 

the Boards priorities. Developments in new approaches are communicated across our organisation to 

enhance the joint working approach to safeguarding adults. This is further emphasised within our  

newly reviewed safeguarding training which incorporates a Think Family approach to managing  

safeguarding concerns and in a trauma informed way. 

The Trust continues to demonstrate seeking assurance of safeguarding practices. There have been 
developments in incorporating safeguarding within our internal quality assurance tools Trustwide and 
following positive feedback from the previous year we have continued to increase the presence of the 
Trust safeguarding team into clinical areas bringing the safeguarding expertise closer to clinical  
services to support and upskill the workforce. 
The Trust embarked on a ‘Journey to Change’ and one of the 5 key areas focuses on  
co-creation. It states we will seek out and act upon the voices of the people we 
work with to improve care. As part of this journey the Trust have appointed 2 
Lived Experience  Directors.  

Cleveland Police held a Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) conference which was a well-

received, inclusive event with Police, Crown Prosecution Service, Health, Local Authorities and  

Commissioned Services. We jointly led on the TATI review resulting from actions in the Molly Review, 

contributing to significant change and improvements to the process. 

Operation Beech, an Initiative to tackle crimes against sex workers in Middlesbrough was highly  

successful and has been nominated and shortlisted for a national VAWG award. The operation,  

alongside local charity A Way Out, led to more than forty women being supported. There have been  

bespoke listening circles set up to glean experiences from victims to help support and shape VAWG 

initiatives across the force.  

A VAWG week of action was carried out to tackle perpetrators and support victims, with 83 arrests 

made in connection with VAWG related offences. Operation Arrow, an operation to target criminals 

who were exploiting children and adults into drugs, trafficking and Modern Day Slavery has 

been shortlisted for a Tilley award. It has seen the successful prosecution of 35 defendants, 

with 10 key members of an Operational Crime Group recently receiving a combined total of 

67 years in prison. A number of people at risk of exploitation have also been safeguarded.  

The Integrated Care Board (ICB) ensures that all staff within the organisation are trained within  

safeguarding adults in line with the intercollegiate document. 

The ICB supports and works with the services that they commission to ensure that statutory  
safeguarding functions are achieved, this assurance takes the form of evidence gathering and  
discussion with providers at regular meetings (Clinical Quality Review group) as well as reviews of 
serious incidents where safeguarding issues are identified as a concern or contributing factor to such 
an incident. The ICB undertake Commissioner Assurance Visits (CAV) to providers and a member of 
the safeguarding team is involved in these visits. The aim of the safeguarding team attending is to 
ensure that statutory safeguarding functions of providers are adhered to, and any concerns can be 
addressed in a timely manner. These visits are undertaken with NHS commissioned services and  
privately commissioned providers. 
The ICB also implement Local Quality Requirements (LQRs) where  
safeguarding training is monitored, and improvement action is highlighted 
as and when required.  

Healthwatch Stockton-On-Tees is a Board member and continues to support and promote the work 

of the Board across social media platforms, we regularly circulate the Board’s newsletters and  

Bulletins across our wider networks and promote the Safeguarding Champions Scheme. Healthwatch 

hosted a number of coffee morning events across 2022/23 at Community Centres and Family Hubs 

and shared the Board’s resources including leaflets, posters and a pop up TSAB  

banner. 
Page 26



 

17 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

Partner Activity 2022/23 Continued... 

Thirteen Housing Group developed and delivered an  
innovative, interactive safeguarding training package to over 
850 staff, board members and involved customers. Developed 
by colleagues within Thirteen, the safeguarding training was 
created to support staff to identify and record safeguarding  
concerns when working with vulnerable individuals.  
 
Interactive learning experiences were set up in vacant  
properties. Two scenarios were created, one for Self-Neglect 
and one for Domestic Abuse. Scenes within the properties 
were created to be as realistic as possible and include signs 
and triggers that staff may encounter when visiting  
properties. Delegates were tasked with identifying signs of abuse and neglect  
highlighting safeguarding concerns, as well as what actions they would take both 
during the visit and post visit.  

Holme House has been concentrating on our people and we are celebrating the upskilling of our     
prisoner Listeners (Samaritans) in SASH training (Suicide & Self Harm) and additional TRiM (Trauma 
Risk Management) training for staff to support both staff and prisoners. Our Safety Intervention      
Meeting (SIM) is a whole prison approach, with inclusivity and joint working of our Partner agencies, 
and the sharing of information to safeguard our prisoners to enable us to be more responsive to their 
needs. 

We have been promoting the TSAB Safeguarding training sessions to further upskill our staff and    
circulating our Safeguarding leaflet and support services which are available to staff and prisoners. We 
are driving hard to meet our targets for accommodation and employment on release to give our      
prisoners the best start possible to reintegrate back into the community. 

Going from Red to Amber/Green on the TSAB QAF is testament to how far Holme House has travelled 
to support the work of the Board in line with all of our aims and objectives of ‘our’ Strategic Plan. 

Probation - North Tees The current structure of the Probation Service is now 2 years old and we   
continue to recruit new staff and blend the legacy teams that came together in 2021. Over the last year 
Stockton and Hartlepool Probation Delivery Unit has ensured that all 110 staff have completed the 
most up to date Probation Service Domestic Abuse, Safeguarding and Prevent training. Probation have 
contributed to Team around the Individual, VEMT and Domestic Abuse Strategic 
Groups as well as Multi Agency Public Protection Arrangements (MAPPA).  

A Way Out has taken part in the TATI review meetings to respond to the findings from the Molly SAR 
and has undertaken a number of sessions with local organisation, including Cleveland Police to raise 
awareness of trauma informed practice.  
AWO has a safeguarding champion within the organisation and actively engages in the campaigns and 
the sharing of newsletters, bulletins and training opportunities. These are widely promoted internally 
and with partners. AWO raises awareness around gaps in provision, namely Adult Sexual Exploitation 
(ASE) and has been actively involved in developing the response around ASE.  
AWO has also explored further funding opportunities to support service provision in 
this area and to enhance the approach across the Tees Valley.  

Catalyst, Hartlepower, Middlesbrough Voluntary Development Agency, Redcar and Cleveland 
Voluntary Development Agency, Tees Rural Action 
The Tees Valley Infrastructure Partnership works collectively with the five area/ geography-based   
agencies to raise awareness of good practice in safeguarding to the sector and support  
organisations more broadly.  
 
Voluntary sector development agencies attend TSAB meetings on behalf of the voluntary, community 
and social enterprise sector. We make efforts to circulate the TSAB Newsletter, new policies and  
announcements to our mailing list, mainly in the VCSE sector across Tees.  
The Tees Valley Infrastructure Partnership co-designed a presentation followed by Q&A for the 2023 
TSAB Development Day.  

Page 27



 

18 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

Our Priorities 2023-24 

Joint Working 

We will develop a whole system approach to 

safeguarding adults which is responsive to the 

individual’s needs, views and wishes. 

Communication 

We will provide accessible and clear information, 

advice and support that helps people to          

understand what abuse is, how to prevent abuse 

from happening, how to seek help and how to 

engage with the work of the Board. 

People 

We will ensure the workforce is well trained,  

supported and equipped to safeguard the most 

vulnerable people within our 

 communities. 

Services 

Services are commissioned and provided by our 

partners to meet the individual needs of adults 

who are most at risk of abuse or neglect. 

The Board’s Strategic Business Plan 2022-25 has been updated following feedback from the Annual 

Consultation Survey 2022/23 and feedback from the Board’s Development Day. The top 3 priorities 

identified by professionals, service users and the general public included with the Strategic Plan are as 

follows: 

Empowerment  

 

Prevention  

Proportionality  
 

Protection 

Partnership 

 

Accountability  

The six safeguarding principles set out in the Care Act 2014 will underpin the Board’s strategic aims 

and objectives and all aspects of safeguarding adults work across Tees: 

The Board’s Strategic Business Plan for 2022-25 can be viewed here: 

https://www.tsab.org.uk/the-board/strategic-plan/ 
Page 28

https://www.tsab.org.uk/the-board/strategic-plan/


 

19 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

Appendix 

 

 

 

 

 

The Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards, under The Mental        

Capacity Act 2005, provide legal protection for those individuals 

who are 18 years old and above and who are, or may become 

deprived of their liberty in a hospital or care home. 

Concerns and Section 42 Enquiries Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards         

(DoLS) Applications  

Page 29



 

20 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

Glossary of Terms  

Ask ANI - The Ask for ANI (Action Needed Immediately) codeword scheme has been 

developed by the Home Office to allow victims of domestic abuse to access support from 

the safety of their local pharmacy. Participating pharmacies will display the Ask ANI logo. 

If a person asks for ANI or a Safe Space, staff will give the person access to their consultation room, 

where they can make a phone call to police, domestic abuse helpline or local support service for example. 

 

Channel Panel (PREVENT) – Multi-agency meeting for those who are identified as being at risk of  

engaging in terrorism.  

 

Domestic Homicide Review (DHR) - a review held under Section 9 of the Domestic Violence, Crime and 
Adults Act 2004 and is coordinated by the local Community Safety Partnership. DHRs review the  

circumstances in which the death of a person aged 16 or over has, or appears to have, resulted from  

violence, abuse or neglect by: 

• a person to whom they were related, or had been in an intimate personal relationship with or 

a member of the same household 

 

DoLS (Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards) - are part of the Mental Capacity Act (MCA) 2005. The  

Safeguards aim to make sure that people in care homes and hospitals are looked after in a way that does 

not inappropriately restrict their freedom.  

 

Learning Disability Mortality Review (LeDeR) – In May 2015 a LeDeR Programme was established to 

learn from deaths of people with a learning disability to address the health inequalities people with  

learning disabilities often face. 

 

Making Safeguarding Personal (MSP) - is an initiative which aims to develop a person-centred and  

outcomes focus to safeguarding work in supporting people to improve or resolve their circumstances. 

MSP is applicable to all agencies working with adults in relation to safeguarding, including those at the 

initial stages of a Safeguarding Concern being identified.  

 

MAPPA – Multi-agency public protection arrangements that ensure agencies work together to protect the 

public by successfully managing violent and sexual offenders.  

 

MARAC (Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference) - information sharing and action planning  

meeting for victims of domestic abuse who are at risk of serious harm or death.  

 

MATAC (Multi-Agency Tasking & Coordination) - to assess and plan interventions to target and  

disrupt serial perpetrators of Domestic Abuse and/or support them to address their behaviour.  

 

Power BI – Power BI is a data visualisation tool that pulls together information to produce high quality 

performance reports.   

 

RASC (Responding to and Addressing Serious Concerns) - a TSAB policy and procedure which sets 

out the framework for dealing with serious concerns of care providers on a multi-agency basis. 

 

Page 30



 

21 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

Glossary of Terms continued…  
 

Safeguarding Adult Reviews - A Safeguarding Adults Review is a statutory requirement 

of the Care Act 2014 (Section 44). The purpose of a SAR is to: 

• Determine what the relevant agencies and individuals involved in the case might have done  

 differently that could have prevented harm or death 

• Learn lessons from the case and apply the learning to future cases to prevent similar harm          

occurring again 

• Explore examples of good practice where this is likely to inform and improve inter-agency 

practice. 

 

The Care Act 2014 sets out the criteria for carrying out a SAR and SABs must carry out a review if: 

 

• There is reasonable cause for concern about how the Safeguarding Adult Board (SAB), its 
members or other persons involved worked together to safeguard the adult; and 

• The adult has died, and it is known or suspected that the death resulted from abuse or        
neglect, including self-neglect; or 

• The adult is alive, but it is known or suspected that they have experienced serious abuse or 

neglect, including self-neglect 

 

Safeguarding Champions - volunteers from a broad range of organisations that are far reaching and 

able to link directly with the community and clients they support.  

 

Safe Place Scheme - Safe Place Scheme locations are venues in the community where people who 

need extra support can go if they need some help. This ‘help’ can range from a phone call to home or 

help with directions. 

 

The idea is that vulnerable people can use these venues if they are feeling unsafe, whilst out in the  

community. Many who benefit from the scheme may never actually need to use it, but the existence of the 

‘Safe Place’ venues allows people to feel safer, and go out and about more (live more independently). 

 

Service User – someone who uses health and/or social care services. 

 

TATI (Team Around the Individual) - a multi-agency approach to supporting work on complex and/or 

high-risk cases, including but not limited to chaotic lifestyles, self-neglect, hoarding, fire risk, alcohol & 

substance misuse.   

 

Vicarious Trauma – is sometimes referred to as ‘secondary trauma’. Anyone who engages  

empathetically with survivors of traumatic incidents can be affected and experience trauma themselves 

through their connection with the person. 

 

X/ Twitter Impressions – the number of times a Tweet has been seen. 

Page 31



 

22 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk 

See it, report it! 

If you suspect a neighbour, friend or family member is being neglected or abused,                     

or you need help yourself. 

Call Cleveland Police 101 or 999 in an emergency. 

Call your local Adult Social Care Team: 

Hartlepool: 01429 523 390 iSPA@hartlepool.gov.uk  

Middlesbrough: 01642 065 070  adultaccessteam@middlesbrough.gov.uk  

Redcar & Cleveland: 01642 771 500  AccessAdultsTeam@redcar-cleveland.gov.uk  

Stockton-on-Tees: 01642 527 764  FirstContactAdults@stockton.gov.uk  

Evenings and Weekends: 01642 524 552   

www.tsab.org.uk 

Queensway House, Billingham, Stockton-On-Tees 

TeeswideSAB 

TeeswideSAB 

01642 527263 

Page 32

mailto:iSPA@hartlepool.gov.uk
mailto:adultaccessteam@middlesbrough.gov.uk
mailto:AccessAdultsTeam@redcar-cleveland.gov.uk
mailto:FirstContactAdults@stockton.gov.uk


© 2022 Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board 

 
  

Our safeguarding arrangements will effectively prevent and respond to adult abuse 

 

 
TSAB Strategic Business Plan 2022-25 
  

 

 

April 2023 / V2   
 

 

 

  

P
age 33



 

2 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Contents 
 

What we do ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 
 

Vision ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 3 
 

Safeguarding Principles .................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 3 
 

Board Priorities ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 4 
 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 34



 

3 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

What we do 

We seek assurance that organisations work in partnership to deliver joined-up services that safeguard adults from abuse and neglect. The work 
of the SAB is underpinned by the Care Act 2014. The core purpose of the Board is to:  
 
• Ensure that local safeguarding arrangements are in place as defined by the Care Act 2014 and statutory guidance.  
 
• Ensure that safeguarding practice is person-centred and outcome focused.  
 
• Work collaboratively to prevent abuse and neglect where possible.  
 
• Ensure agencies/individuals give timely and proportionate responses when abuse or neglect has occurred and  
 
• Ensure that safeguarding practice is continuously improving and enhancing the quality of life of adults in the area.  
 
Vision  

Our safeguarding arrangements will effectively prevent and respond to adult abuse. 

The TSAB will seek assurance from statutory organisations and multi-agency partners that the following aims, objectives and actions are 

delivered. 

Safeguarding Principles 

The safeguarding principles set out in the Care Act 2014 will underpin all aspects of safeguarding adults work across Tees. 

Empowerment: 
 

Prevention: 
 

Proportionality: 
 

I am asked what I want as the outcomes from 
the safeguarding process and these directly 
inform what happens 

I receive clear and simple information about what 
abuse is, how to recognise the signs and what I 
can do to seek help. 

I am sure that the professionals will work in my 
interest, as I see them and they will only get involved 
as much as needed. 

Protection: 
 

Partnership: 
 

Accountability: 
 

I get help and support to report abuse and 
neglect. I get help so that I am able to take part 
in the safeguarding process to the extent to 
which I want. 

I know that staff treat any personal and sensitive 
information in confidence, only sharing what is 
helpful and necessary. I am confident that 
professionals will work together and with me to get 
the best result for me. 

I understand the role of everyone involved in my life 
and so do they. 

P
age 35



 

4 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Board Priorities 

Priority 1: Joint Working Aim: We will develop a whole system approach to safeguarding adults which is 
responsive to individual’s needs, views and wishes 

Objectives: We will 
1. Ensure Board partners work together in an effective manner to protect adults from all forms of abuse and neglect. 
2. Consider and act upon the impact of new legislation and statutory guidance on safeguarding practice, for example, Liberty Protection 

Safeguards, Domestic Abuse Act 2021. 
3. Engage and Collaborate with the Local Safeguarding Children Partnerships, Community Safety Partnerships, Domestic Abuse Steering 

Groups, Health and Well-being Boards, Tees Exploitation Group (TEG) and partners to deliver joint priorities and objectives. 
4. Engage and collaborate with the multi-partnership and multi-agency development work regarding Missing Adults, Transitions, Contextual 

Safeguarding and Adult Sexual Exploitation.  
5. Further embed trauma informed practice, strengths based and person-centered approaches to all safeguarding adults’ work. 
6. Explore different safeguarding operating models and joint protocols to enhance partnership working and information sharing (new objective) 

2023-24 Actions: We will do this by 

1. Concluding the work to review the Teeswide approach to the management of high-risk and 
complex cases and implementing the new arrangements. 

2. In conjunction with service users and carers review existing and, where appropriate and necessary, 
develop new policy, procedure, and guidance to incorporate updated or new legislation and 
statutory guidance. 

3. Working with relevant partners, partnerships, and user groups to develop joint protocols which will 
contribute towards the development of a ‘Missing Adults’ protocol, Transitions procedures, 
Contextual Safeguarding work, and an Adult Sexual Exploitation Strategy. 

4. Reviewing existing decision support guidance tools to take into account the increasing complexity, 
risk and volume of safeguarding cases, including notifications for Safeguarding Adult Reviews. 

5. Further developing the suite of tools, resources, and training to truly embed trauma informed practice 
in adult safeguarding.   

6. Identifying opportunities to test out new ways of working with partners.  

Lead 
Statutory Partners and OL 
 
PPP Task and Finish Group/ OL 
 
 
Relevant Partnerships, with 
support from OL and TSAB 
Business Unit 
OL/SAR 
 
LTD 
 
Statutory Partners 

Assurance Methods 

Quality Assurance Framework (QAF) / self-
audit tool, performance reports, multi-
agency audits, surveys, other partnership 
plans, training plan, impact assessments, 
feedback from adults 

Impact/ outcomes 
Adults at risk of or experiencing abuse and / or neglect will be confident that professionals will 
work together and with them to achieve the best possible outcomes for them. 
Evidence that TSAB is and has worked effectively with partnerships operating within and 
across the Tees area to provide the best and most efficient services possible for individuals in 
need and across our communities. 

 

P
age 36



 

5 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Priority 2: People 
 

Aim: We will ensure the workforce is well trained, supported and equipped to safeguard 
the most vulnerable people within our communities 

Objectives: We will 

 

1. Seek assurance from partners that staff understand the legislative framework and the principles of trauma informed practice to ensure 
the best outcomes for adults at risk. 

2. Seek assurance from partners that staff are provided with single agency Safeguarding Adults training in accordance with the TSAB 
Training Strategy. 

3. Seek assurance from partners that staff are provided with support and training, particularly in relation to the management of high 
risk/complex cases and with consideration of vicarious trauma. 

4. Learn from the findings of local, regional, and national Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SAR), Learning Lessons Reviews (LLR), applicable 
Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHR), and Safeguarding Children Practice Reviews (SCPR) and implement action plans. 

5. Provide opportunities for partners to share learning and best practice in all aspects of safeguarding adults work which will promote staff and 
public confidence. 

 

2023-24 Actions: We will do this by 

 

1. Developing and delivering the TSAB Training Plan to align with TSAB priorities, ensuring that the 
voice of people with lived experience of abuse or neglect is included in resources and events. 

2. Reviewing and further developing the Quality Assurance Framework/ Self-Audit tool to seek 
assurance from partners on the training and support provided to their staff. 

3. Developing and implementing action plans for all SARs and LLRs, applicable DHRs and SCPRs. 
4. Sharing the learning from the above reviews at the earliest opportunity, across partner agencies and 

seeking assurance that the learning has been embedded into practice. 
5. Further developing methods to review learning from SARs and LLRs to ensure it remains embedded 

in practice 
6. Identifying and celebrating good news stories, innovative work, and exceptional people. 

 

Lead 

 

LTD 

 

PAQ 

 

SAR 

SAR/LTD/OL 

 

SAR/LTD 

 

CE 

Assurance Methods 

QAF / self-audit tool, surveys, website hits, 
training evaluations, multi-agency audits, 
impact assessments, awards. 

Impact/ outcomes 

Adults at risk of or experiencing abuse and/or neglect will have confidence that 
professionals will be involved only as far as is reasonable, proportionate, justifiable and 
necessary and always work in their best interest.   

 

 

P
age 37



 

6 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Priority 3: Communication 
 

Aim: We will provide accessible and clear information, advice and support that helps 
people to understand what abuse is, how to prevent abuse from happening, how to seek 
help and how to engage with the work of the Board 

Objectives: We will 
 

1. Ensure mechanisms are in place that enable adults, their families, and their carers to better inform the future direction and priorities of Adult 
Safeguarding across Tees 

2. Ensure that all public-facing materials are accessible and understandable. 
3. Ensure adults and/ or their representatives or advocates who use safeguarding services are asked what they want as outcomes from the 

safeguarding process and that their views actively inform what happens.  
4. Provide tools and resources to facilitate engagement with adults in need of safeguarding support.  
5. Ensure the Safeguarding Champions initiative continues to improve engagement with local communities, harder to reach groups, the 

seldom heard and creates stronger links with the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise sector.  
6. Ensure robust information sharing across and between agencies and partnerships to ensure the best outcomes for adults using 

safeguarding services. 

2023-24 Actions: We will do this by 

1. Further developing tools and processes to assist with seeking feedback from adults and their carers.  
2. Reviewing the Communication and Engagement Strategy to ensure it reflects the need to minimise the 

use of technical, professional language within public facing information  
3. Continuing to monitor the TSAB Performance Indicator relating to outcomes. 
4. Delivering a Communication and Engagement plan, including awareness raising and ‘Spotlight On’ 

campaigns which focus on prevention and engages with the public, hard to reach groups, the seldom 
heard, and professionals. 

5. Provide Safeguarding Champions with the tools and resources they need to ensure they can carry out 
the role within their own organisations and ensure that there is representation from all relevant 
agencies including the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise sector. 

6. Reviewing the TSAB Information Sharing Agreement to minimise the duplication of work across 
organisations and partnerships. 

Lead 
CE 
CE 
 
PAQ 
CE 
 
 
CE/LTD 
 
 
BU/SBC 

Assurance Methods 

Performance Indicators, annual CE report, 
performance reports, QAF/Self-audit tool, 
multi-agency audits, feedback from focus 
groups, feedback from individuals, families 
and carers, evaluation reports 

Impact/ outcomes 
People will receive clear and simple information about what abuse is, how to recognise the 
signs and how to seek help. 

P
age 38



 

7 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Priority 4: Services  Aim: Services are commissioned and provided by our partners to meet the individual 
needs of adults who are most at risk of abuse or neglect 

Objectives: We will 
1. Ensure that adults at risk of neglect and/or abuse can access support services and schemes such as the Safe Place Scheme and Ask ANI. 
2. Seek regular assurance from our partners on the safe commissioning and delivery of services. 
3. Implement our new performance monitoring processes and systems to obtain accurate, current, and validated information. 
4. Provide opportunities to share information about innovative services and solutions for working with people with complex needs 
5. Work with the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise sector to understand and share the range of services and support available to 

meet the needs of adults most at risk of abuse and neglect. 

2023-24 Actions: We will do this by 
1. Reviewing the ‘Find Support in your Area’ page on the TSAB website to ensure all information is up to 

date and accurate. 
2. Delivering the annual Quality Assurance programme, which includes the Quality Assurance 

Framework/ self-audit tool and multi-agency case audits. 
3. Correlating accurate records of services that are subject to the Responding to and Addressing Serious 

Concerns protocol, including data within the TSAB quarterly Performance Reports.  
4. Implementing and embedding the Power Bi system to produce high quality performance reports which 

will support the analysis and further development of multi-agency safeguarding practice. 
5. Establishing better links with the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise sector within the Board’s 

structure. 

 
CE 
 
PAQ/OL 
 
PAQ/ SAR 
 
PAQ 
 
CE, OL 

Assurance Methods 
QAF/Self-audit tool, TSAB reports, 
performance reports, multi-agency audits, 
assurance reports to TSAB, feedback from 
adults, their families and carers, Responding to 
and Addressing Serious Concerns (RASC) 
reports 

Impact/ outcomes 
Adults at risk of or experiencing abuse and/or neglect will have access to a range of high quality 
services and support that meet their individual needs. 

Sub-Groups’ key: Communication and Engagement (CE), Learning, Training and Development (LTD), Operational Leads (OL), Performance, 

Audit and Quality (PAQ), Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR), Policy, Procedure & Practice (PPP). 

LA = Local Authority        SBC = Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council     BU = Business Unit 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 40



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Safeguarding Concerns – Analysis 

(including DoLS activity)  

 

Introduction 

This briefing gives some background to changes in Stockton’s Safeguarding performance reporting and 

aims to contextualise the increase in the number of Safeguarding concerns this year. 

 

What our data was telling us 

In presenting the TSAB annual report (2021/22), the TSAB Chair reported an increase in the total 

number of Safeguarding Concerns in all the Local Authorities apart from Stockton. This was reported 

at the Health and Wellbeing Board in December 2022 and in the local media.  

Members of the Adult Social Care and Health Committee in January 2023 queried Stockton’s lower 

number of Safeguarding concerns compared to other LAs. 

The ADASS regional dashboard shows that Stockton ranks lower than the other LAs for the number of 

Safeguarding Concerns in both 21/22 and 22/23, making the conversion rate in Stockton higher than 

other neighbouring authorities. 

In Stockton all Safeguarding concerns are triaged by our First Contact Team and concerns not requiring 

any further action are dealt with. The Safeguarding Team takes responsibility for cases where more 

investigation is needed or where the Section 42 enquiry threshold is met. The Safeguarding Team 

captured data for our Safeguarding returns; any work undertaken by First Contact was not being 

measured and there was under-reporting of the number of Stockton’s Safeguarding Concerns. 

 

Changes 

Performance recording has now been changed and all Safeguarding Concerns reported to Stockton 

are now being measured, in alignment with the other LAs in TSAB.  

The increase in the number of Concerns for Stockton was anticipated, triaging of concerns has not 

changed and therefore there has not been a significant increase in the number of Section 42 enquiries 

for this quarter compared to previously. However due to the increase in the total number of 

Safeguarding Concerns recorded, there will be a decrease in the conversion percentage of Concerns 

leading to Section 42 Enquires. 

An assurance audit of Safeguarding concerns triaged at First Contact as No Further Action was 

completed, showing effective and consistent decision-making. All referrals and decisions are recorded 

on the LAS system for Adult Social Care. The number of safeguarding concerns being reported should 

remain high from now, as data previously held only at First Contact is being captured.  

 

1. DoLS Annual Data Collection  
1.1. The latest  official statistics for the MCA DoLS were published on 24th August 2023.  

Page 41

Agenda Item 6

https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-capacity-act-2005-deprivation-of-liberty-safeguards-assessments/2022-23


 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

  

2. National DoLS Activity 
2.1. Applications for authorisation of DoL increased nationally by around 11%, which is higher than 

previous years, and more in line with pre-Covid activity levels. Completed DoLS applications 

have increased by 10% on average over the last five years, although the cases reported as not 

completed (c. 126,000) were up by 2% on the previous year.  

 

2.2. Nationally, 19% of applications were completed within the statutory timeframes (on average 

156 days). This shows that significant rates of potential unlawful deprivation of liberty.   

 

 

3. Regional DoLS Activity  
3.1. The North East consistently reports levels of DoLS activity. In 2022/2023 per 100k population, 

the number of individuals with a DoLS application, the number of applications and completed 

applications were all higher than the national average. This is viewed as positive because it 

means that the relevant people are afforded the protections of the DoLS, and deprivations of 

liberty are lawful. Some Local Authorities in the region have cited data reporting issues affecting 

data integrity and subsequent under-reporting of activity.   

 

3.2. DoLS networks in the North East are well-established and rationale for DoLS activity in the 

region has been provided previously. This includes compliance across most of our LA 

neighbours; movement between care settings meaning multiple authorisations for individuals, 

dedicated DoLS functions with committed resource to the DoLS process, including raising 

awareness with managing authorities; an increase in the number of qualified BIAs within the 

LAs; “competitive” regionally-agreed rates for DoLS assessments impacting positively on 

throughput.  

 

 

4. Stockton-on-Tees Data  
4.1. There were 10% more DoLS applications in 2022/2023. The Discharge to Assess process appears 

to have largely contributed to this. Last year, we received 293 DoLS applications for people in a 

discharge to assess placement in a care home, most of which resulted in a standard DoLS 

authorisation. Work is underway to better understand the impact of this on DoLS activity.  

 
4.2. Completed DoLS applications in 2022/2023 per 100k population were the highest regionally and 

among our LA peers in England (and much higher than the national average).  

 

4.3. 70 DoLS applications were not yet signed off at the end of the reporting period. Nationally this 

was 126, 000 indicating backlogs in the system. For this measure, Stockton-on-Tees is in the 

lowest percentile, and ranks lowest among our Local Authority peers and regionally. There is no 

waiting list for DoLS in Stockton-on-Tees. 

 

4.4. Our average time between receipt of application and completion in was 11 days across urgent 

and standard authorisations (significantly lower than the national average of 156 days) 

evidencing SBC’s continued compliance with the DoLS framework. 

Page 42



 

 

Health & Wellbeing Board 
 
A meeting of Health & Wellbeing Board was held on Wednesday 27 September 
2023. 
 
Present:   Cllr Bob Cook (Chair), Cllr Lisa Evans (Vice Chair), Cllr Diane Clarke OBE, Cllr Dan Fagan, Cllr 
Kevin Faulks, Cllr Mrs Ann McCoy, Cllr Steve Nelson, Cllr David Reynard, Cllr Stephen Richardson, Cllr Sylvia 
Walmsley, Fiona Adamson, Jon Carling, Jo Heaney (sub for David Gallagher), Shaun Mayo (sub for Dominic 
Gardner), 
 
Officers:  Jane Smith, Tanja Braun, Mandy Mackinnon, Emma Brady, Rob Papworth, Judy Trainer 
 
Also in attendance:   Jenny Thompson (CGL), Esther Mireku, Hayley Tranter, Karen Kelsey (NTHFT), Danielle 
Chadwick (Harbour) 
 
Apologies:   Carolyn Nice, Elaine Redding, Sarah Bowman Abouna, David Gallagher, Alex Sinclair, Dominic 
Gardner, Peter Smith 
 
 

1 
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

2 
 

Minutes of the Meeting held on 26 July 2023 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be confirmed as a correct record and signed by 
the Chair. 
 

3 
 

Alcohol Harm Reduction Steering Group Update  
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board had established an Alcohol-related Harm 
Steering Group in September 2019.  The group had developed a strategic 
framework supported by an annual action plan.  The group’s work resulted in 
system-wide strategic approaches which gave rise to expansion of treatment 
and recovery services, improvement in recovery pathways and a strengthened 
approach to preventative activities.    
 
The Alcohol Care Team (ACT) in North Tees Hospital had been in place for a 
year.  The team provided onsite advice and treatment for patients admitted to 
hospital requiring unscheduled alcohol detox and or advice.  The team liaised 
with community-based services to ensure continuity of care on discharge from 
hospital.   
 
Community-based substance misuse services for Stockton-on-Tees were 
provided by Change Grow Live (CGL).  The service provided support, advice, 
and treatment for people on their recovery journey for drugs and/or alcohol.  
 
The Board received a presentation from the Alcohol Care Team which outlined 
the role of the Team and positive impact on patient health, a reduction in 
violent incidents, prevented admissions and re-admissions and a reduction in 
alcohol related deaths. The Board also received a presentation from Change 
Grow Live on the recovery services in Stockton including Healthy Habits, peer 
support, professional support, medication, and detox. 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
Key issues highlighted and discussed: 
 

• There had been an increase in referrals to alcohol care teams locally and 
nationally and, if necessary, more sustainable resources might be required 
for the Alcohol Care Team. Engagement and preventative work had a role 
in easing service demands 

• Unlike smoking prevalence, alcohol dependency occurred across all socio-
economic groups, however, the impact of dependence was felt more deeply 
in deprived communities 

• The alcohol treatment pathway presented focused on adults. However, the 
provider is also providing alcohol/ substance misuse services for children 
and young people. Current work ongoing to further understand need and 
improve services. 

 
RESOLVED that the update and presentations be noted. 
 

4 
 

Domestic Abuse Steering Group Update 
 
The Domestic Abuse Strategy had been approved by the Board in December 
2022 and, since then, an action plan had been developed through a workshop 
with partner organisations. The Domestic Abuse Steering Group received 
themed updates on the delivery of the action plan.  Most recently, the updates 
had been in relation to workforce development and NHS pathways to specialist 
support. 
 
The Board received presentations on: 
 

• Harbour: Workforce development  

• Harbour: GP Independent Domestic Violence Advocate 

• NTHFT: Hospital Independent Domestic Violence Advocate 
 
The Board were encouraged to raise awareness of the training programme 
withing their organisations. Bespoke sessions could be offered and there was 
flexibility on the days/ times for delivering the sessions. Current training dates 
would be circulated to the Board. 
 
The Board acknowledged the positive impact of the GP and Trust IDVA. Case 
studies would be circulated to the Board.  
 
RESOLVED That the update and presentations be noted. 

 
5 
 

Health and Wellbeing Partnerships’ Update 
 
This Board received an update on the discussions being undertaken by the 
Adults Health and Wellbeing Partnership and the Children and Young People’s 
Partnership. It highlighted the significant collaborative working and the 
important and invaluable links that were made, between Partners, at each 
meeting.  This report covered meetings held in July 2023. 
 
It was clarified that GP practices sent out invitations to eligible patients for an 

Page 44



 

 

NHS health check every five years, however, patients could also request an 
NHS health check themselves.  
 
RESOLVED that the update be noted. 
 

6 
 

Members’ Updates 
 
There were no Member Updates. 
 

7 
 

Health and Wellbeing Board – Forward Plan 
 
The following items would be added to the forward plan: 
 

• NHS Dentistry Provision – October 

• Mapping of VCS Health and Social Care Organisations - November 
 
RESOLVED that the forward plan be noted. 
 

  

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



 

 

Health & Wellbeing Board 
 
A meeting of Health & Wellbeing Board was held on Wednesday 25 October 2023. 
 
Present:   Cllr Bob Cook (Chair), Cllr Lisa Evans (Vice Chair), Cllr Dan Fagan, Cllr Kevin Faulks, Cllr Mrs Ann 
McCoy, Cllr Steve Nelson, Cllr David Reynard, Cllr Tony Riordan (sub for Cllr Diane Clarke OBE), Cllr Sylvia 
Walmsley, Carolyn Nice, Jane Smith (sub for Elaine Redding), Sarah Bowman Abouna, Fiona Adamson, Lucy 
Owens (sub for Jon Carling), Peter Smith 
 
Officers:  Tanja Braun, Judy Trainer 
 
Also in attendance:   James Bromiley, Ruth Dalton (NTHFT), Kamini Shah (NHS England), Pauline Fletcher 
(NENC ICB) 
 
Apologies:   Cllr Diane Clarke OBE, Cllr Stephen Richardson, Elaine Redding, Jon Carling, Dominic Gardner, 
Alex Sinclair, Mary Bewley. 
 
 

1 
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

2 
 

Minutes  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2023 be 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

3 
 

Health Protection – Winter Planning Update  
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board considered an update from the health 
protection collaborative on ongoing work on winter planning.  
 
Winter 2022/23 presented significant challenges to communities and the health 
and wellbeing being system with cost of living pressures, ongoing Covid 
circulation, flu and other respiratory infections.  
 
The picture for this winter was not yet known but planning was underway to 
monitor and mitigate the impacts as well as prevent escalation where possible.  
 
The update covered surveillance systems, Covid and flu vaccinations, work 
with settings and communities and the local health protection response. 
 
Key issues discussed were as follows: 
 

• With regard to attendance at work places, Covid infections were now 
treated the same as other infection and there was no longer a testing 
requirement. However, where staff worked with vulnerable people, access 
to tests and local protocols on attendance should be in place  

• Administering the Covid vaccine was not as straightforward as the flu 
vaccine and required additional staff training as well as particular 
requirements for mixing and storage. As a result, not all GP practices 
offered both vaccines 

• Take up of the flu vaccine amongst Council employees appeared to be 
good and a further update could be provided by NHS colleagues at the end 

Page 47



 

 

of the season 
 

RESOLVED that the update be noted and key messages to staff supported on 
winter wellness, including vaccinations. 
 

4 
 

Oral Health Update 
 
This Board received a presentation from Kamimi Shah (NHS England) on oral 
health. The presentation covered: 
 

• Oral Health Needs Assessment and recommendations 

• The impact of poor dental health 

• The evidence base for prevention programmes 

• Existing work around oral health promotion 

• Dental decay prevalence decrease in Teesside 2007/08 to 2016/17 

• Community Water Fluoridation 
 
Key issues highlighted and discussed were as follows: 
 

• Although there had been improvements in dental health, there remained 
significant oral health inequalities  

• Fluoridation helped to level out oral health inequalities 

• Supervised tooth brushing schemes were taking place in Stockton schools 
as part of the Healthy Schools Programme. A small number of schools were 
not taking part in the programme, however, this was not due to an 
unwillingness to participate and Council officers were working with schools 
to provide support for their involvement  

 
RESOLVED that the presentation be noted. 
 

5 
 

NHS Dentistry Provision 
 
This Board received a presentation from Pauline Fletcher (NENC ICB) on NHS 
Dentistry Provision and the Primary Care Dental Access Recovery Plan. The 
presentation covered: 
 

• The role of the ICB in commissioning dental services 

• Overview of NHS dentistry regulations and contracts 

• The challenges to people accessing dentistry in the North East and 
Cumbria 

• Action to tackle the challenges in three stages 
o Immediate actions to stabilise services 
o A more strategic approach to workforce and service delivery 
o Developing an oral health strategy to improve oral health and reduce 

the pressure on dentistry 

• Further actions and next steps 

• Advice/ signposting for patients 

• Advice for patients with an urgent dental need 

• Oral health improvement initiatives 
 

Page 48



 

 

 
Key issues highlighted and discussed were as follows: 
 

• Immediate action had included £3.8m non recurrent investment for 2023/24, 
a local recommissioning process to re-provide (where possible) activity 
when contracts were handed back and support for employment of oversees 
dentists  

• Patients were not registered with dentists in the same way as GP practices 
and therefore a patient could contact any NHS dental practice to access 
care. Dental practices were being encouraged to prioritise patients for 
treatment based on clinical need and urgency. However, some practices 
were operating waiting lists to manage those patients requesting routine 
NHS dental care 

• Board Members vocalised concerns that older and vulnerable people who 
could not afford private dentistry were still having problems accessing NHS 
care and asked for a further update in 12 months 

 
RESOLVED that the presentation be noted and a further update be provided to 
the Board in 12 months. 
 

6 
 

Update on Group Development Work Between North Tees and Hartlepool 
NHS Foundation Trust and South Tees NHS Foundation Trust 
 
This Board received a presentation from James Bromiley (Associate Director of 
Group Development) on the Group Model and Partnership Agreement. The 
presentation covered: 
 

• Drivers for the collaboration 

• Group model development  

• The purpose of the Partnership Agreement 

• The Group Operating Model 

• Partnership Management and Governance 

• Clinical Strategy 

• Timeline 
 
Key issues highlighted and discussed were as follows: 
 

• A key driver for the change was creating a stronger single and coherent 
voice for the health needs of the community 

• The Group Model built on years of collaborative working 

• The Partnership Agreement would set out at high level how the Group 
Model would operate 

• The Model would adopt a “patient first” principle and a joint clinical strategy 

• The Partnership Agreement was due to be considered by boards in late 
November with a view to implementation in Quarter 1 of 2024/25 

• There was an acknowledged need for improvement in record sharing and 
forming the Group would provide a stronger business case for funding for 
digital investment 

• Merger was not on the agenda at the present time. The Trusts would 
continue to submit their own accounts and the proposed arrangements 

Page 49



 

 

would not be to the financial detriment of North Tees and Hartlepool NHS 
FT Trust 

• No adverse impact on travelling time was anticipated as a result of the 
changes and there were plans to roll out more services into the community 

 
RESOLVED that the presentation be noted. 
 

7 
 

Healthwatch Annual Report 
 
RESOLVED that this item be deferred to the next meeting of the Board. 
 

8 
 

Member Updates 
 
There were no Member Updates.  
 

9 
 

Forward Plan 
 
It was agreed that an item would be included on the next Board agenda 
regarding the recent Government Announcement on Smoking. 
 
RESOLVED that the forward plan be noted. 
 

  

Page 50



 

 

Health & Wellbeing Board 
 
A meeting of Health & Wellbeing Board was held on Wednesday 29 November 2023. 
 
Present:   Cllr Bob Cook (Chair), Cllr Diane Clark OBE, Cllr Dan Fagan, Cllr Kevin Faulks, Cllr Lynn Hall (sub 
for Cllr David Reynard), Cllr Steve Nelson, Cllr Stephen Richardson, Cllr Sylvia Walmsley, Jane Smith (sub for 
Elaine Redding), Sarah Bowman Abouna, Fiona Adamson, Jon Carling, Dominic Gardner, Peter Smith 
 
Officers:  Yvonne Chung (BCF), Aishah Waithe, Rob Miller, Grace Wali (PH), Neil Mitchell (CS, E&C), Judy 
Trainer (CS) 
 
Also in attendance:   Karen Jessop, Lucy Owens (Catalyst), Alex Sinclair, Craig Blair, Alex Sinclair, Kathryn 
Warnock (NENC ICB) 
 
Apologies:   Cllr Lisa Evans, Cllr Mrs Ann McCoy, Cllr David Reynard, Carolyn Nice, Elaine Redding 
 
 

1 
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

2 
 

Minutes  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 25 October 2023 be 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

3 
 

Healthwatch Annual Report 
 
The Board received a copy of the Healthwatch Annual Report for 2022/23 and 
received a presentation which outlined: 
 

• April 2022 – March 2023 priorities 

• 10 Year Celebration Event 

• Healthwatch Heroes 

• How to become a Healthwatch Community Champion 

• Priorities for 2023/24: 
o Growing Older Project 
o Pharmacy 
o Rolling Programme of Coffee Mornings 

 
Key issues highlighted and discussed were as follows: 
 

• The Board thanked Healthwatch for their help with developing the 
community mental health framework 

• Access to dentistry was discussed and it was noted that Tees Valley Joint 
Health Scrutiny Committee had received a presentation on the issue and 
Stockton’s Adult Social Care and Health Select Committee were doing a 
scrutiny of access to primary care services 

• Waiting times for core CAMHS were good, however, there had been 
significant increases in waiting times for Autism and ADHD referrals since 
the pandemic 
 

RESOLVED that the Healthwatch Annual Report 2022/23 be noted. 
 

Page 51



 

 

4 
 

Director of Public Health Annual Report 
 
Under the Health and Social Care Act (2012), the Director of Public Health had 
a duty to prepare an independent annual report.  Nationally, there had been a 
hiatus in producing these reports due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic 
and subsequently due to the recovery work. 
 
The Director of Public Health Annual Report 2022 aimed to capture an 
overview of key activity from a public health perspective, over the course of the 
unique and challenges events of the Covid-19 pandemic.  It also sought to 
summarise the learning from this period, from a public health perspective and 
describe some of the activity since, in response to this learning.   
 
Embedding learning and monitoring of public health activity would continue to 
be overseen and reported through the Lead Member, Corporate Management 
Team and Health and Wellbeing Board as part of core business. 
 
Board Members thanked the Director, the Public Health Team and partners for 
all their work in response to the pandemic. The report highlighted health 
inequalities and the importance of having a cohesive approach to inform future 
work. 
 
RESOLVED that the Director of Public Health Annual Report be noted.  
 

5 
 

Public Health Update 
 
This Board received a presentation on: 
 

• Acute Respiratory Illness 

• Covid 19 and Flu 

• Vaccination 

• Other concerns 

• Next steps 
 
Key issues highlighted and discussed were as follows: 
 

• Acute respiratory illness was currently on the rise which was a similar 
pattern to last winter 

• Covid cases and Covid related hospitalisations were currently decreasing. 
The vast majority of hospitalisations remained in the clinically vulnerable 
85+ age group 

• Deaths within Stockton-on-Tees with Covid-19 on the death certificate 
remained low 

• Norovirus cases were currently rising within the North East although there 
were currently no reported cases in Stockton-on-Tees 

• Three cases of children with diarrhoea (Confirmed cases of 
Cryptosporidium and Salmonella) attending nurseries in Stockton-on-Tees 
had been reported, despite guidance to exclude from the setting 

• National trends revealed increased rates in Salmonella cases with a cluster 
of 74 cases identified. Recent cases appeared to mostly affect young 

Page 52



 

 

children (0-9 years) and older adults (60-69 years). Locally in Stockton, 
there had been a small outbreak in October with three known cases from a 
bakery 

• Average uptake of Covid autumn vaccinations across borough for those 
eligible was 42.9% and Care home resident Covid vaccination uptake for 
Stockton on Tees was 77.3%. However, there were disparities in 
vaccination uptake in minority ethnic groups including black/black British, 
mixed, and Asian/Asian British 

• Average uptake for flu vaccinations across the borough for those eligible 
was 38.7% 

• Pop up Covid vaccination clinics had been held at Thornaby Pavilion and 
on Stockton High Street 

• Next steps included: 
o Support with pop-up vaccination clinics for Flu and Covid in 

November/December 
o Resharing of winter health messages with nurseries, childminders and 

primary schools, particularly regarding diarrhoea and vomiting 
o Winter Wellbeing support leaflet - autumn vaccine information, infection 

prevention and control, keeping warm and welfare support 

• Board Members were concerned about low vaccine take-up and noted 
unexpected variation between wards. It was suggested that variation across 
the Borough could be attributed to differences in start time between 
practices and officers undertook to review more current data. It was also 
confirmed anyone eligible should have been contacted by their GP practice 

• A national report on low flu vaccination take up in the NHS had also been 
published. ICB colleagues advised that take up locally in Health and Social 
Care staff was down 7% on the same time last year  

• Disappointing take-up reinforced the need to continue to promote key 
messages about the importance of vaccinations. Work continued across 
partners and community champions to promote these key messages 

 
RESOLVED that the update be noted and actioned accordingly. 
 

6 
 

Winter Preparedness  
 
This Board received a presentation from the ICB on winter planning. The 
presentation covered: 
 

• Context 

• National Guidance 

• 2023/24 Winter Planning 
o Local Accident & Emergency Delivery Board (LADB) 
o System Control Centre (SCC) 
o Tees Valley Incident Command Coordination Centre (ICCC) 
o Urgent and Emergency Care Highlight Report 
o 23/24 Winter Plans and Business Cases 

• Risks and Challenges 
 

Working alongside Tees Valley LADB partners, a resilience template had been 
developed. The template built in Key Lines of Enquiries (KLOE’s), based upon 

Page 53



 

 

the requirements of the various planning guidance documents, alongside other 
local intelligence. The template mapped the KLOE’s against the 10 high impact 
interventions, ensuring response to each. TV LADB system partners had been 
to self-assess against the range of KLOE’s, providing a RAG risk rating. This 
had then been consolidated into a TV system RAG risk rating. 
 
From the 66 KLOE’s identified the TV system rated 12 as amber (In plans, but 
risks associated with delivery) and 0 as red (No evidence of existing 
implementation or in system plans). The Amber KLOE’s were set out for the 
Board and the LADB would ensure monitoring and delivery against each over 
the coming months. 
 
Key issues discussed were as follows: 
 

• Community based support reduced the pressures on tertiary care 

• If a new and serious covid strain was to emerge, there would be a national 
response and communications strategy 

• Additional support had been provided to GP practices to enable more 
appointments to the offered over the winter period 

 
RESOLVED that the presentation be noted. 
 

7 
 

Mapping of VCSE Sector 
 
The Board received a presentation from Catalyst on an exercise that had been 
carried out to map out and identify gaps in themed areas. The presentation 
covered: 
 

• FSOT Framework - Coordinator role - SBC/lottery funded 

• Health Inequalities National Lottery funding  

• Identifying the gaps and how to address them 

• Role of VCSE 

• Themes to map: 
o Food Poverty 
o Skills and Employment 
o Fuel Poverty 
o Money and Debt 
o Health and Wellbeing  

 
Key issues highlighted and discussed were as follows: 
 

• The mapping had led to: 
o Understanding of the VCSE and how it worked alongside 

commissioned services 
o Strong working relationships with a range of partners 
o Gaps identified and connections made to bring organisations 

together to meet needs 
o Identifying contacts on the mailing list – allowing information to be 

shared easily with VCSE and SBC colleagues 
o Key themes identified were transport and social isolation 

Page 54



 

 

• Board members highlighted an opportunity for a bike recycling scheme in 
Holme House prison and also an opportunity for joint working to take place 
with social care colleagues around hording 

 
RESOLVED that presentation be noted. 
 

8 
 

A Smokefree Generation 
 
The Board received a presentation on the Government’s announcement for the 
UK to become a Smokefree generation by 2030 by reducing smoking 
prevalence to 5% of the adult population. The proposals included: 
 

• Legislation for increasing the age of sale and proxy purchases 

• Restricting vape flavours and regulating vape packaging 

• Restricting the sale of disposable vapes  

• All would require new enforcement powers for Local Authorities 

• Additional funding nationally: £70m stop smoking services; £5m this year 
then £15m thereafter for campaigns; £30m for enforcement agencies and 
introducing on the spot fines for underage sales of tobacco and vapes 

 
The consultation would be open until 6 December 2023. The Director of Public 
Health would draft and circulate a response from the Board for comments. 
Individuals would still be able to submit their own comments. 
 
RESOLVED that the presentation be noted and the Director of Public Health be 
authorised to draft and submit a response to the consultation on behalf of the 
Board, following seeking comments from Board members.  
 

9 
 

Physical Activity Steering Group Update 
 
The Board received a report on progress achieved by the Physical Activity 
Steering Group (PASG) and partners since January 2023. As a sub-group of 
the Health and Wellbeing Board, the report also outlined future proposed 
developments of the steering group. 
 
RESOLVED  
 
(1) That the presentation on Physical Activity Developments, and on the 

Healthy Weight Strategic Approach, be noted. 
 
(2) That the expansion of the steering group’s remit to include healthier weight 

be supported and approved. 
 
(3) That the next steps for Healthy Weight Strategic Approach for Stockton-on-

Tees be supported and approved. 
 

10 
 

Stockton Better Care Fund (BCF) Update  
 
The Board considered a report providing an update on the submission of the 
Stockton-on-Tees BCF Quarter 2 report. The quarter 2 report was developed to 
collect: 

Page 55



 

 

 

• Confirmation of S75 agreements and that national conditions are being met  

• Updates on metric ambitions 

• Refreshed capacity and demand plans for Nov 2023 – Mar 2024 
 
The quarter 2 report had been agreed by the BCF Delivery Group and signed 
off by the Pooled Budget Partnership Board on behalf of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board.  It had been submitted to the NHS England on 31 October 
2023.   
 
Following concerns expressed on behalf of the Board, frequency in submitting 
reports had now been reduced from fortnightly to monthly. 
 
RESOLVED that the submission of the Stockton-on-Tees BCF Quarter 2 report 
to NHS England as part of the reporting requirements set out in the BCF 
Planning Requirements 23-25 be noted.   
 

11 
 

Member Updates 
 
Parking Arrangements – Thornaby Health Centre 
 
Councillor Sylvia Walmsley highlighted a problem that had come to her 
attention regarding confusion about parking arrangements at Thornaby Health 
Centre. She suggested that a solution might be to include parking options on 
appointments letters. Alex Sinclair undertook to investigate with the acute trust. 
 
Right Care, Right Person 
 
Dominic Gardner highlighted this national programme which set out a 
framework for how police and health services should improve the response to 
people with mental health needs. The partnership approach would establish an 
agreement between policing, health and other relevant partners that aimed to 
ensure that individuals in mental health crisis were seen by the right 
professional.  
 
A formal update would be brought to the Board in January. 
 

12 
 

Forward Plan 
 
RESOLVED that the forward plan be noted. 
 

  

Page 56



 

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE 
Work Programme 2023-2024 

 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Date 
(4.00pm   

unless stated) 
Topic Attendance 

20 June 
(1.00pm) 
(informal) 

Scrutiny Training Scrutiny Team 

18 July Overview Report: SBC Adults, Health and 
Wellbeing 
 
 
CQC / PAMMS Quarterly Update: Q4 2022-2023 
 
Regional / Tees Valley Health Scrutiny Update 
 
Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
(February & March 2023) 

Cllr Ann McCoy / Cllr Steve Nelson 
/ Carolyn Nice / Emma Champley / 
Sarah Bowman-Abouna 
 
Darren Boyd 

19 September Healthwatch Stockton-on-Tees: Annual Report 
2022-2023 
 
CQC / PAMMS Quarterly Update: Q1 2023-2024 
 
Monitoring: Progress Update – Care Homes for 
Older People 
 
Review of Access to GPs and Primary Medical Care 

• Background Briefing 

• (Draft) Scope & Project Plan 

Peter Smith 
 
 
 
 
Rob Papworth 
 
 

 
Sarah Bowman-Abouna / 
Emma Joyeux 

24 October Well-Led Programme Update 
 
 
Monitoring: Progress Update – Day Opportunities 
for Adults 
 
PAMMS Annual Report (Care Homes): 2022-2023 
 
Review of Access to GPs and Primary Medical Care 

• North East and North Cumbria Integrated 
Care Board 

 
Regional / Tees Valley Health Scrutiny Update 
 
Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
(May, June & July 2023) 

Julie Nisbet / Ben Brown / 
Sarah Stokes 
 
Rob Papworth 
 
 
Darren Boyd 
 

 
Emma Joyeux 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21 November  Review of Access to GPs and Primary Medical Care 

• Cleveland Local Medical Committee 
 
North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust 
(NTHFT): Maternity Services Update 
 
CQC / PAMMS Quarterly Update: Q2 2023-2024 

 
Rachel McMahon 
 
Lindsey Robertson /  
Stephanie Worn 
 
Darren Boyd 

Page 57

Agenda Item 10



 

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE 
Work Programme 2023-2024 

 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Date 
(4.00pm   

unless stated) 
Topic Attendance 

19 December Review of Access to GPs and Primary Medical Care 

• Hartlepool & Stockton Health GP 
Federation 

 
SBC Winter Planning Update (referred to SBC 
Executive Scrutiny Committee) 

 
Fiona Adamson / Carl Gowland 
 
 
 

23 January 
2024 

Review of Access to GPs and Primary Medical Care 

• Primary Care Networks (PCNs) 
o Billingham & Norton PCN 
o BYTES PCN 
o North Stockton PCN 
o Stockton PCN 

 
SBC Director of Public Health: Annual Report 2022 
 
Regional / Tees Valley Health Scrutiny Update 

 

 
Felicity Brown 
Dr Nick Steele / Daniel Hallsworth 
Dr Barnaby Morgan 
Dr Dhirendra Garg / Ian Forrest 
 
Sarah Bowman-Abouna 

20 February Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board (TSAB): 
Annual Report 2022-2023 
 
Safeguarding Concerns – Analysis (including DoLS 
activity) 
 
Review of Access to GPs and Primary Medical Care 

• Patient / Public Views 
 
CQC / PAMMS Quarterly Update: Q3 2023-2024 
 
Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
(September, October & November 2023) 

Darren Best / Carolyn Nice 
 
 
Angela Connor 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19 March North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust 
(NTHFT): Quality Account 2023-2024 
 
Monitoring: Progress Update – Care at Home 

Nikki Clasper, Fiona McEvoy, 
Rebecca Denton-Smith 
 
Martin Skipsey / Rob Papworth 
 

 
 
2023-2024 Scrutiny Reviews   

• Access to GPs and Primary Medical Care 

• Adult Safeguarding 
 
Monitoring Items 

• Day Opportunities for Adults (Progress Update) – TBC 

• Care at Home (Progress Update) – Mar 24 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 58



 

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE 
Work Programme 2023-2024 

 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Performance and Quality of Care (standing Items) 

• SBC Adults, Health and Wellbeing – Overview Report 

• SBC Director of Public Health – Annual Report 

• SBC PAMMS (Care Homes) – Annual Report 

• Healthwatch Stockton-on-Tees – Annual Report 

• Care Quality Commission (CQC) – State of Care Annual Report 

• Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board (TSAB) – Annual Report 

• North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust (NTHFT) – Quality Account 
 
Regular Reports 

• 6-monthly Adult Care Performance Reports (including complaints/commendations) (new format tbc) 

• 6-monthly Public Health Performance Reports (new format tbc) 

• Regional / Tees Valley Health Scrutiny – Updates 

• Care Quality Commission (CQC) / PAMMS – Quarterly Inspection Updates 

• Health and Wellbeing Board – Minutes 

• Quality Standards Framework (QSF) for Adult Services (new format tbc) 
 
Other Reports (as required) 

• Healthwatch Stockton-on-Tees – Enter and View Reports 

• Care Quality Commission (CQC) – Inspection Reports (by email / by exception at Committee) 
 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60


	Agenda
	1 Evacuation Procedure
	5 Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board (TSAB) - Annual Report 2022-2023
	TSAB Annual Report - 2022-2023
	TSAB Strategic Business Plan 2022-2025

	6 SBC Safeguarding Concerns - Analysis (including DoLS activity)
	9 Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board
	Health & Wellbeing Board - Minutes (25th Oct 23)
	Health & Wellbeing Board - Minutes (29th Nov 23)

	10 Chair's Update and Select Committee Work Programme 2023-2024

